





OFS TOWN HALL SURVEY
Introduction

The town hall as a building type is probably the truest concrete reflection of the aspirations and self
image that a town has of itself. This image is nearly always shaped by economic constraints and
sometimes by calamities such as fires or even by rapid development or by “forward thinking" town
clerks or council members.

The town halls, as they appear in this survey, understandably reflect a diverse selection of styles
fluctuating between the unselfconscious town hall of Kestell to the Bauhaus influenced town hall of
Bothaville.

The bulk of the town halls surveyed were erected in the 1920's and 1930's culminating in Gordon
Leith's town hall for the provincial capital Bloemfontein dating from 1936.

This brief overview of certain architectural aspects of the buildings surveyed should, but does not,
investigate the reasons for the coming into existence of the town hall as a building type. One could
certainly hint at some of the most important reasons such as community gatherings with a civic
purpose. More important though, would be the cultural function that the town hall fuffilled within the
smaller rural community. Visiting theatre troupes and the flickering images of the motion picture
brought a welcome relief to the often tedious and difficult. existence on the platteland.

The town hall apart from its broader social function was and is also home to the local wedding
reception or birthday party. For a small fee every (white) inhabitant could “command" the space and
the facilities of the town hall. The town hall could and did lend importance to the town and the life of
the individual.

in discussing the architectural character of the different town halls certain generalisations unfortunately
have to be made in the absence of complete knowledge. The hidden connections between towns and
individuals in towns, architects and designers etc. often remain hidden and opinions are then only
based on the building as it stands.

BETHLEHEM

The building is styled along the lines of an American capital and has a restrained and nearly utilitarian
air about it. Masey focuses attention on the entrances by using sandstone to create in strict neo-
classical fashion porticos and door surrounds to the otherwise nearly bland facades. The facades are
rendered in red brick with sandstone detail around the window openings. As a style the neo-
Palladianism popularised by Baker and Leith was clearly losing its momentum but the style in a
severely spartan form lingered on. On the drawing boards of the PWD to become a sort of Public
Service style.

BLOI IFONTEIN

The Bloemfontein town hall designed by Gordon Leith is arguably one of the finest in South Africa
especially when read in the context of President Brand Street. The building has stylistically been
described as forming part of the socalled "New tradition" movement of which the Viceroy's Palace at
New Delhi in India is probably the best example. The building uses as ornament on the sandstone
facades classical elements fused with local elements such as agricultural activities, the crest of the city
etc.

Internally the building boasts on Art Deco interior somewhat less happily grafted onto a classical
background.









KESTELL

The Kestell town hall is an example of unselfconscious civic architecture. The building is purely
functional, being a rectangle with a double pitched corrugated iron roof. The only decoration is a
scalloped design to the bargeboards. The scale of the building is residential and it was possibly
designed as a temporary solution to the socializing needs of the community.

ROONSTAD

The town hall of Kroonstad, although prominently placed within the town, is today marooned within a
sea of taned freeway. It is in close proximity to another building designed by the Till brothers, the DR
Church. Both buildings are "busy", ristling with chimneys, towers, and corner turrets in zinc.

The building, the result of a competion, was designed in a rather austere classicism but appears
animated and nearly sculptural due to the modulated massing of the volumes and the prefabricated
details stacked on or tacked onto the mass of sandstone. The building is a jewel in the crown of Free
State architecture and as a town hall must rate as one of the most exciting if not the biggest or
architecturally the most elegant.

LADYBRAND

This tow hall of elegant but rural classical proportions is situated in the cradle of the sandstone
building tradition. The building was designed by a well-known Free State architect, Frederick Masey.
The building has very little ornamentation but the guarry faced sandstone facade and buiky silhouette
seems to blend well with the rugged sandstone hills and mountains around the town.

The building has a centrally placed clock tower, an extravagance that only a handful of towns in the
Free State could afford.

LINDLEY

The town hall at Lindley was originally erected in 1891, an unremarkable rectangular sandstone edifice
with a double pitched corrugated iron roof. When H.G.E. de la Cornillére added further accommodation
he designed an arched colonnade with sandstone pediments (1937). This addition transformed the
building from a mere utilitarian hall to a building of not inconsiderable civic dignity.

The arched openings are now to be meshed-up as the conservative local authority entrenches itself
against an anticipated attack from the liberated masses.

MARQUARD

The Marquard town hall continues the Edwardian tradition that has by the 1920's become somewhat
wedded to the Cape Dutch gable popularised by Sir Herbert Baker. Certain classical elements remain
e.g. the suggestion of brick quoins and the precast concrete ball ornaments on the main gable. The
gables are elegant but only appear on the main [~ “ered and painted facades. Later, unsympathetic
additions has further highlighted the utilitarian, low budget character of the building.

REITZ

The architect H. _._. de la Cornillere was a well-known architect in the Free State and also played a
primitive and leading role in the Orange Free : e institute of Architects. He designed the town hall
of Reitz in 1937 in a style that could in a certain sense be called a Public Service style. The style is
in essence a continuation of the Edwardian neaclassicism but here using also the Baker language of
red brick, sandstone and plaster.

The building has an abstracted neoclassical front facade with symmetrical wings and quarter circle
porticos on precast concrete columns flanking the main entrance.

















































































